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1. Question: I downloaded ITN #001-14/15 from the vendor bid system yesterday, but I 
noticed that many of the links within the RFP, most of which are necessary elements of the 
vendor response, are not responsive hyperlinks.  Will a revised ITN be posted?  Or is 
there a secondary source from which vendors are to find/download those additional 
forms/elements? 

Answer: Refer to the 3rd paragraph of section 2.1: Introduction, of the ITN document.  
The Library of Procurement Information and Standard Forms (“the Library”) is located on 
the Lottery’s Internet site and the URL is: http://www.flalottery.com/solicitations.do. 

2. Question: We are excited about the opportunity to review the ITN that the Florida Lottery 
recently released (project # 001-14/15). I have an initial question regarding the 
upcoming due date for our questions on July 1st - it states these are due in writing and 
then lists both a physical address and this email address next to the date. Are these 
questions due physically in writing to the physical mailing address or can these be 
submitted by email to this email address? 

Answer: Refer to the 2nd paragraph of section 2.9: Vendor Questions of the ITN 
document.  Questions relevant to this Solicitation or request for changes to the Solicitation 
must be received, in writing (mailed, hand-delivered, faxed, or e-mailed), by the Issuing 
Officer by the time indicated in section 2.7: Schedule of Events. 

3. Question: Our agency is already a registered vendor with the State of Florida.  My 
question  ..is there a letter that needs to be sent ….or a form that needs to register us if we 
are interested in participating in this ITN  ?  If so what was that deadline date? 

Answer: No, a letter of intent to respond is not requested or required.  Refer to section 
2.1: Introduction of the ITN document and Part 4: Instructions for Preparing and 
Submitting Replies for additional information.  Additionally, information regarding 
MyFloridaMarketPlace Contractor Registration and Transaction Fee is located in 
Attachment A, section 1.15 items 1 and 2.   

4. Question: VOLUME ONE. Can you clarify which forms are included under Department 
of State documentation? (page 24) 

Answer: Refer to section 4.4.3: Licensing by Department of State of the ITN document.  
Vendors must provide and should submit a copy of their license authorizing them to do 
business in the State of Florida or provide evidence of their application for a license in the 
Reply. 

5. Question: VOLUME ONE. In reference to the Florida Preference Certification. Does the 
agency need to get an actual certificate from the Florida Lottery or would an affidavit 
suffice? (page 24) 

Answer: Refer to section 4.4.8: Preference of Florida Businesses of the ITN document.  In 
the letting of any or all public contracts, a Vendor whose principal place of business is 
outside the State of Florida must provide a written opinion signed by an attorney at 
law licensed to practice law in that foreign state, as to the preferences, if any or 



Answers to Questions 
 

 

Florida Lottery Invitation to Negotiate #001-14/15         Page 2 of 15 
General Market Advertising Services & Related Commodities and Services 

none, granted by the law of that state to business entities domiciled within its state 
boundaries.  

6. Question: VOLUME ONE. Is Chart of Corporate/Business Ownership a form or are you 
specifically requesting a company org chart? (page 24) 

Answer: Refer to section 4.4.2 item D: Chart of Corporate/Business Ownership.  
Vendors must provide an accurate and current Chart of Corporate/Business Ownership 
for themselves and their Substantial Subcontractors, including parent company(s), 
subsidiary companies, and each joint venturer.  

7. Question: VOLUME ONE. Where can we find Background Investigation & Disclosures 
as well as other forms mentioned in the ITN but not included as attachments? (page 24) 

Answer: Refer to the 3rd paragraph of section 2.1: Introduction, of the ITN document.  
The Library of Procurement Information and Standard Forms (“the Library”) is located on 
the Lottery’s Internet site and the URL is: http://www.flalottery.com/solicitations.do.  
Additionally, the forms have been hyperlinked below for ease of use: 

Advertising Guidelines 
Certification of Drug Free Workplace 

Conflict of Interest and Disclosure Form 
Disclosure Affidavit 

Florida Lottery Overview 
Mandatory Requirements of Agreement 
RESPECT of Florida Agreement Terms 
Vendor Diversity Agreement Terms 

Vendor Personal Profile Form 

8. Question: VOLUME ONE. Under Financial Review, please specify if Federal Income Tax 
Returns suffice or should certified financials be submitted with the response? (page 26) 

Answer: Refer to the 2nd paragraph of section 4.4.1.1 titled “Vendors”, of the ITN 
document.  Vendors must provide financial statements certified by an external auditor that 
are in conformity with US Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) or 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), or Federal Income Tax Returns 
for the two most recent fiscal years.  

9. Question: VOLUME ONE. Only sole proprietors and shareholders of publicly traded 
companies need execute the Vendor Personal Profile Form? (page 28) 

Answer: Refer to section 4.4.2 item C: Vendor Personal Profile Form of the ITN 
document.  If a Vendor or Substantial Subcontractor is a sole proprietorship or general 
partnership, the individual owner or each individual partner must execute the Vendor 
Personal Profile Form.  All other Vendor(s) will be notified by the Lottery, throughout the 
Solicitation process, of individuals who must complete a notarized Vendor Personal Profile 
Form and obtain a fingerprint card.   

http://www.flalottery.com/exptkt/AdvertisingGuidelines11-2014.pdf
http://www.flalottery.com/exptkt/certificationDrugFreeWorkplace.pdf
http://www.flalottery.com/exptkt/conflictOfInterestAndDisclosureForm.pdf
http://www.flalottery.com/exptkt/disclosureAffidavit.pdf
http://www.flalottery.com/exptkt/FloridaLotteryOverview.pdf
http://www.flalottery.com/exptkt/SolicitationMandatoryRequirementsAgreement.pdf
http://www.flalottery.com/exptkt/RESPECTofFloridaAgreementTerms11-2014.pdf
http://www.flalottery.com/exptkt/VendorDiversityAgreementTerms11-2014.pdf
http://www.flalottery.com/exptkt/vendorPersonalProfile.pdf
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10. Question: VOLUME TWO. Under 4.5.4, examples of executed advertising, it is stated 
that submitted examples should bear non-removable labels identifying the Vendor and the 
specified sections of the Solicitation to which they correspond. Does this mean that we 
must present creative in individual separate boards? Does this only apply to 
printed/produced pieces such as brochures? Should we also include the samples within 
the binder itself? (pages 33-34) 

Answer: Refer to section 4.5.4: Examples of Executed Advertising and Attachment B: 
Evaluator Multiplier Score Form.  This information pertains to criteria that will be 
evaluated; therefore the Lottery will not provide guidance to Vendors in preparing their 
Replies.  However, Vendors should refer to section 4.2: Reply Format for guidance in 
preparing the content of their Replies.   

11. Question: VOLUME THREE. Under creative assignments we must prepare media flights 
for all markets for 4 and 12 week periods. Can you clarify what is expected in re the 
flights? Please clarify if the 12 week media flight delivery is inclusive of all 3 assignments 
(4 weeks each) or must we present two versions of each assignment (one of 4 weeks and 
one of 12 weeks)? (page 36) 

Answer: Refer to Part 1: Definitions and section 4.6: Volume Three: Creative Work 
Assignments of the ITN document.  Each work assignment should include Gross Rating 
Point objectives with frequency/reach and efficiency analysis and impressions for a 
minimum of both a 4 week and a 12 week period.  

12. Question: VOLUME FOUR. Should we include an electronic copy for the cost proposal 
as well? 

Answer: Refer to section 4.8.2: Volume Four: Cost Reply.  Vendors should furnish one 
original, clearly marked as “Original”; and one paper copy, clearly marked as “Copy”.   

13. Question: It is referenced in section 2.16 that any and all materials submitted become 
the property of the Lottery. Are there any exceptions to that provision that do not lead to 
disqualification from the response? We typically do not respond to pursuits where we 
don't retain creative rights, but we are considering it in this case. We have a great story 
to tell and know we could do great work for the Florida Lottery. 

Answer: There are no exceptions to the referenced provision.  Refer to section 2.16 and 
in particular to the statement that the Lottery “reserves the right to use any and all 
information contained in a Reply, including the Reply of an unsuccessful Vendor, unless 
prohibited by law.”   

14. Question:  Will you provide a copy of the current media plan? 

Answer: No. 

15. Question: The ITN states in 4.5.3 “Vendors should note only those individuals identified 
by the Vendor in its staffing plan as performing at least 50 percent of their work on the 
Lottery account are eligible to participate in the Phase II Creative Work Assignments, Oral 
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Presentation, & Interview process.” This differs from the previous ITN that allowed “… 
Individuals identified by the Vendor in its staffing plan for fulfilling the contractual 
responsibilities in connection with this ITN, e.g. Account Manager, Creative Director, 
Media Director etc. may participate in the presentation process.” Will the Florida Lottery 
modify the ITN to allow senior members of the Vendor’s team to participate in the 
presentation process, if they have direct contractual responsibilities for the Florida Lottery 
account even if they do not meet the 50 percent threshold?  

Answer: The Lottery has considered this request and the term and condition of the ITN 
remains unchanged. 

16. Question: The ITN states in 4.6 that “All Vendors should present a proposed solution to 
each of the three work assignments identified in Attachment D.” However, “… Only 
vendors awarded 80 percent or more of the Phase I points will move forward to Phase II, 
where work assignments, oral presentations and interviews will be evaluated.” This is a 
significant change from the previous ITN where only Phase II participants were asked to 
submit a single work assignment. As your potential partner, we plan to invest heavily in 
this ITN to demonstrate our capabilities and commitment, however, the current approach 
is very different than the standard practice in our industry.  Generally, clients won't ask for 
work assignments or campaigns that will take hundreds of hours to compile before they 
know if they’ve made it to the final round. Will the Florida Lottery consider modifying the 
ITN to allow vendors to complete the work assignments once they’ve advanced to Phase II, 
as you did on the previous ITN and as is common in our industry? 

Answer: The Lottery has considered this request and the term and condition of the ITN 
remain unchanged.  Furthermore, Vendors should refer to Attachment A, section 1.8: 
Quoting Process, Attachment A, section 1.7.1: Creative Concepts, and Part 1 of the ITN: 
Definitions, specifically the definition of Creative Concepts.   

17. Question: Regarding a joint venture of two or more companies, should it be composed 
of one company from Florida and other company of other state ?   

Answer: This is an option within the Vendor’s discretion.   

a. Question: What information is required from each entity ?  

Answer: Vendor is defined in Part 2: Definitions of the ITN document, as any 
organization, joint venturer or person who submits materials to the Lottery in 
response to this Solicitation.  Refer to sections 4.1: Joint Replies and 4.2.3: Reply 
Execution of the ITN document for additional information specific to joint Replies; 
and Part 4 of the ITN document for information that should be included in each 
Vendor’s Reply.     

18. Question: If a participant is a Joint venture, the experience and all documentation should 
be presented by each entity duplicating the forms that are included for that purpose, or 
should we use a different form explaining what company had what part of the expierience 
?  Same question regarding the billings information (Do we need to include each 
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document and information per each company that compose the JV ?  Or just one 
document merging all information ??) 

Answer: Vendor is defined in Part 2: Definitions of the ITN document, as any 
organization, joint venturer or person who submits materials to the Lottery in response to 
this Solicitation.  Each entity should submit information documenting their experience, the 
information requested in the ITN of a Vendor, and any required forms. 

19. Question: What documents and requirements are necessary to present the reply as a 
joint venture ? 

Answer: Refer to the answers to questions 17 and 18 above.  

20. Question: It is mentioned that a JV could be composed by two or more companies.  I 
understand 3 companies can present as part of a JV.  Is that possible ? 

Answer: Refer to section 4.1: Joint Replies of the ITN document.  Yes, two or more 
organizations may submit a joint Reply in response to this Solicitation.   

21. Question: At this point in the process are you able to share website visits by market or 
any other site analytics/data to help us identify opportunity and/or priority markets? 

Answer: The 2014 Traffic Statistics Summary, and January through May 2015 Traffic 
Statistics for the Florida Lottery Website (www.flalottery.com) have been uploaded to the 
Library of Procurement Information and Standard Forms (“the Library”) located on the 
Lottery’s Internet site at the following URL: http://www.flalottery.com/solicitations.do. 

22. Question: Is there any sales seasonality that you can share at this point? 

Answer: Trends Charts from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 have been uploaded 
to the Library of Procurement Information and Standard Forms (“the Library”) located on 
the Lottery’s Internet site at the following URL: https://www.flalottery.com/solicitations.do.    

23. Question: Are you able to provide any consumer insights, player segmentation, etc? 

Answer: The 2012 Market Segmentation Study is located on the Lottery’s Internet site at 
the following URL: http://www.flalottery.com/openGovernment.  Additional information 
and reports are available on the Lottery’s Internet site at the following URL: 
http://www.flalottery.com/reports.  

24. Question: If we were to look at these 3 Assignments as ‘Advertising initiatives”, how 
many total initiatives does the Lottery typically support in a calendar year? 

Answer: The Lottery has a minimum of two product launches per quarter.  Additionally, 
the Lottery’s 2015-2016 Long-Range Program Plan is located on the Lottery’s Internet site 
at the following URL: http://www.flalottery.com/openGovernment.    

25. Question: We did not see Florida Lottery approved Logos or Fonts in the Advertising 
Guidelines. Are you able to provide those for use in each of the 3 Assignments, or did we 
perhaps overlook them from a separate source? 
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Answer: Yes, Vendors are granted a one-time authorization for the purposes of 
responding to this ITN.  Please refer to the Lottery website at: 
http://www.flalottery.com/logoLibrary.do. 

Additionally, the Florida Lottery Quick Reference Guides for the Brandmark Logo and the 
Wordmark have been uploaded to the Library of Procurement Information and Standard 
Forms (“the Library”) located on the Lottery’s Intranet site at the following URL: 
http://www.flalottery.com/solicitations.do.  

26. Question: As currently written, Section 4.5.3 states that respondents invited to 
participate in Phase II may only include staff members listed on the supplied staffing plan 
with 50% or more of their time devoted to the Lottery account. This would preclude 
participation from some agency disciplines that are required to satisfy the scope of work 
outlined in Section 3.2 of the ITN and Section 1.7 in the Special Terms & Conditions 
because by the nature of the business they do not spend 50% of their time on any single 
account. Will an exception be made to this requirement to ensure agency representation 
from all disciplines necessary to deliver the scope of work outlined by this ITN? 

Answer: Refer to the answer to question 15 above. 

27. Question: Can we submit our Creative Director’s previous agency experience and 
work?  

Answer: Refer to sections 4.5.2: Vendor Qualifications and Experience and 4.5.3: 
Vendor Personnel Qualifications (Staffing Plan) and Attachment B: Evaluator Multiplier 
Score Form.  This information pertains to criteria that will be evaluated; therefore the 
Lottery will not provide guidance to Vendors in preparing their Replies.  However, 
Vendors should refer to section 4.2: Reply Format for guidance in preparing the content of 
their Replies.   

28. Question: Can the bonds be terminated if the agency isn’t selected?  

Answer: Refer to sections 4.4.6: Reply Bond and 4.4.7: Litigation Bond of the ITN 
document.   

As it relates to the Reply Bond, the check/bond will be returned to unsuccessful Vendors 
upon the execution of an Agreement with the successful Vendor or upon cancellation of 
the Solicitation.  The check/bond of the successful Vendor will be retained until the 
Agreement is executed and the Lottery is furnished with an acceptable performance bond.   

As it relates to the Litigation Bond, each vendor must provide a litigation bond in the 
amount of two million dollars, which should be submitted with their Reply and will remain 
in effect for four years after the Lottery executes an Agreement relative to this Solicitation 
unless that Vendor submits a Covenant Not to Sue, in which case the bond will be 
returned.   

29. Question: Is their a limit to the number agency’s asked to present creative or is truly 
based on score? 
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Answer: Refer to section 2.25.2: Phase II: Creative Work Assignments, Oral 
Presentation & Interview of the ITN document.  The Lottery will invite all Vendors 
awarded 80 percent or more of the Phase I points, or 2,944 or more points, to 
Phase II where they will make an oral presentation of their Volume Three: Creative Work 
Assignments to the Evaluation Team in Tallahassee, Florida demonstrating their 
capabilities, strengths, and approach to conceptualizing, presenting, producing, and 
executing a fully integrated campaign.    

30. Question: Will we know our score moving into the creative presentation? 

Answer: Refer to section 2.25.2: Phase II: Creative Work Assignments, Oral 
Presentation & Interview of the ITN document.  Upon completion of Phase I, the Lottery will 
notify Vendors within the competitive range, and provide further instructions.   

31. Question: Will a list of finalists be posted? 

Answer: This question is too broad or provides insufficient information for the Lottery to 
provide an accurate and complete response.    

32. Question: Are Subcontractors working for the responding vendor required to have an 
office within Florida?  

Answer: No. 

33. Question: What are the office arrangements should we choose to take on-site space? 

Answer: Refer to section 3.4.1: Co-Location at the Lottery of the ITN document.  The 
Vendor’s Reply should contain the square footage desired, which is subject to the Lottery’s 
approval.   

a. Question: What is the Cost Per Sq. Foot?  

Answer: Refer to section 3.4.1: Co-Location at the Lottery of the ITN document.  
Space made available by the Lottery will be charged to the Contractor on a pro-rated 
basis, based upon the rates established in the Lottery’s Headquarters facility lease 
agreement.  The Lottery is in year 8 of a 10 year lease agreement.  Below are the 
lease rates for the remaining years of the current lease agreement: 

Year 8   (7/15/15 through 7/14/16)  $17.42 
Year 9  (7/15/16 through 7/15/17)  $17.60 
Year 10 (7/15/17 through 7/14/18)  $17.78 

b. Question: What amount of space does the Florida Lottery have available to us? 

Answer: Refer to section 3.4.1: Co-Location at the Lottery of the ITN document.  The 
Vendor’s Reply should contain the square footage desired, which is subject to the 
Lottery’s approval.   

c. Question: Will space/offices be furnished? If so, how and what are associated 
costs? 
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Answer: The Contractor will be responsible for providing all office furniture and 
equipment. 

d. Question: Technology: Will we have access to or need to get our own service for 
Internet (Ethernet or Wi-Fi)? 

Answer: The Contractor will be responsible for obtaining any internet service.   

e. Question: Building access: Will we have 24/7 access to our offices on-site? 

Answer: No, the current Contractor is provided access from seven to seven Monday 
through Sunday, including state holidays.   

34. Question: Off-site office: Is there a mandatory proximity of an off-site office to the Florida 
Lottery offices (1, 3, 5 miles)? 

Answer: Refer to section 3.4: Account Management of the ITN document.  The 
Contractor must have a current or proposed branch office in Tallahassee, Florida, where 
at a minimum the Contractor’s Account Manager for the Lottery must be located.  There is 
no mandatory proximity of an off-site office to the Florida Lottery office, except that the off-
site office must be located within the city limits of Tallahassee, Florida.  

35. Question: Production Costs:  

a. Do production costs come out of the agency commissions?  

Answer: Refer to Attachment A, sections 1.5: Compensation and 1.6: Basic Fiscal 
Policies.  

b. What is the maximum budget established for production costs?  

Answer: Approximately $2 million annually.   

c. If possible, please provide line-item budget for production for 2014. 

Answer: Refer to the answer to question 35.b. above.  The Lottery’s line-item budget 
appropriation for advertising services includes production services, which the Lottery 
internally allocates to specific areas including but not limited to General Market 
Advertising, Spanish Language Advertising, Strategic Alliance, Special Events, 
promotional items, production services and others.  

36. Question: Can the Florida Lottery provide us an example of a POV position paper?  (p. 
20, sect. 3.2, item 19) 

Answer: The Contractor, as specified in section 3.2: Scope of the ITN, will provide POV 
position papers within the time and constraints specified by the Lottery.  POV position 
papers must at a minimum be on the Contractors letterhead, in memo style, include an 
overview of the event or publication with specifications, and the Contractors 
recommendation.   
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37. Question: Is there a maximum amount the state allows per hour for public relations 
work?  If so, what is it and how is it determined? 

Answer: No.  Information regarding the Lottery’s current contract for public relation 
services can be located on the Florida Accountability Contract Tracking System (FACTS) 
at: http://www.myfloridacfo.com/division/AA/FACTSReporting/default.htm.  

38. Question: Please provide the current agency personnel in place for the Lottery account at 
St. John’s Partners, including staffing requirements, titles and salaries. 

Answer: Information regarding the Lottery’s current contract is available on Florida 
Accountability Contract Tracking System (FACTS) at: 
http://www.myfloridacfo.com/division/AA/FACTSReporting/default.htm. 

39. Question: Are there things you can share with us that are not working with your current 
advertising/marketing approach? 

Answer: No.  

40. Question: Do you have any research (that you can share with us) around current 
awareness, sales, geographic or demographic patterns, customer insights or customer 
segmentation? 

Answer: The Lottery’s May 2015 Tracking Report, calendar year 2014 tracking study 
information by district, and calendar year 2014 player demographic data has been 
uploaded to the Library of Procurement Information and Standard Forms (“the Library”) 
located on the Lottery’s Intranet site at the following URL: 
http://www.flalottery.com/solicitations.do.  

41. Question: Page 52, references the need for “multiple creative concepts” for each 
campaign; could you provide a little more guidance on expectations here? 

Answer: Refer to the definition of “Creative Concepts” located in Part 1: Definitions of 
the ITN document and Attachment A, section 1.7.1: Creative Concepts.   

42. Question: Page 23, can you give us more detail around approving creative briefs, can 
we establish some guard rails around this (# of rounds of review etc.)? 

Answer: The Lottery has considered this request and the term and condition remains 
unchanged.  Refer to Attachment A, section 1.7.1: Creative Concepts for Creative Brief 
requirements.    

43. Question: Page 54, are there any learnings from past conferences you can share? 

Answer: No. 

44. Question: Page 76 – would it be possible for us to see the research that fed into your 
situational analysis? 
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Answer: The 2012 Market Segmentation Study is located on the Lottery’s Internet site at 
the following URL: http://www.flalottery.com/openGovernment. 

45. Question: Can you share any information about customer acquisition costs, loyalty 
and/or lifetime customer value? 

Answer: Refer to the answers to questions 21, 22, 23, 40, and 58. 

46. Question: Could we have a look at current analytics for your marketing efforts? 

Answer: Refer to the answers to questions 21, 22, 23, 40, and 58.   

47. Question: Page 78 – what is the typical “threshold” you see (in terms of jackpot size) for 
when Powerball and Lotto sales pick up/fall off? 

Answer: All Lotto games are driven by jackpot size.  

48. Question: Can you share a historical reel of all of your previous work, and any 
commentary on what you consider standout work from the category?  

Answer: This question is too broad or provides insufficient information for the Lottery to 
provide an accurate and complete response.     

49. Under 3.3 Desired Qualifications, it states that the Lottery desires a vendor that has 
“annual billings of $10 million within at least one of the three immediately preceding 
years, or verifiable anticipated billings in the current year.” 

a. Question: Can you clarify this? Is the requirement that the advertising firm have $10 
million in billings in Florida alone or in Florida and other states or countries? 

Answer: Refer to section 3.3: Desired Qualifications of the ITN document.  Vendors 
should have an established history of providing advertising services in the state of 
Florida.  The Lottery desires a Vendor, in its current organizational structure, that has 
verifiable, annual billings of a minimum of $10 million within at least one of the three 
immediately preceding years, or verifiable billings in the current year.  

b. Question: Also, does the $10 million billings requirement apply only to the 
advertising firm, or is that in combination with the annual billings of any “substantial 
contractors” that the advertising firm may submit an ITN response along with? 

Answer: Refer to the definition of “Vendor” located in Part 1: Definitions and section 
3.3: Desired Qualifications of the ITN document.  Vendor is defined as any 
organization, joint venture or person who submits materials to the Lottery in response 
to this Solicitation.  The Lottery desires a Vendor, in its current organizational 
structure, that has verifiable, annual billings of a minimum of $10 million within at 
least one of the three immediately preceding years, or verifiable billings in the current 
year. 
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50. Question: Under 3.3 Desired Qualifications, it states you are seeking a vendor with 
“demonstrable skills in maximizing funds.” Can you elaborate on exactly what you mean 
by that?    

Answer: Refer to section 3.3: Desired Qualifications and Attachment B: Evaluator 
Multiplier Score Form.  This information pertains to criteria that will be evaluated; therefore 
the Lottery will not provide guidance to Vendors in preparing their Replies.  However, 
Vendors should refer to section 4.2: Reply Format for guidance in preparing the content of 
their Replies.   

51. Question: Of the total contract, what percentage is expected to be earned media, event 
management, promotions, and public relations?  Is advertising considered part of 
promotions? What about digital/content marketing? 

Answer: The current Contractor provides approximately 15% in added value for media 
placed/purchased.  $3,500,000 of the General Market Advertising budget is spent on 
digital content, which includes digital banners, carrier stations, and out of home.  Event 
Management, promotions and public relations are not part of the General Market 
Advertising budget.    

52. Question: Who do you consider your main competitors? (both online and offline) 

Answer: The Lottery competes for the discretionary dollar.   

53. Question: Who is the target audience segment(s) for players? Does this differ from those 
who actually buy tickets? 

Answer: The 2012 Market Segmentation Study is located on the Lottery’s Internet site at 
the following URL: http://www.flalottery.com/openGovernment. 

54. Question: What percentage or portion of the media budget is historically earmarked for 
online? 

Answer: The Lottery’s annual General Market Advertising budget is allocated based 
market conditions.   

55. Question: What is the typical consideration process, from awareness to purchase, that 
players go through? 

Answer: Refer to the answer to question 23 above.  

56. Question: What is the most successful channel that drives people to purchase? 

Answer: Refer to the answers to questions 21, 22, 23, 40, and 58.     

a. Question: Retail/Point of sale? Radio? Online? Other? 

Answer: Refer to the answers to questions 21, 22, 23, 40, and 58.    
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57. Question: To what extent does supporting FL education factor into people’s decisions to 
buy tickets? 

Answer: Refer to the answers to questions 21, 22, 23, 40, and 58.   

58. Question: Are you doing any online to offline attribution measurement currently? 

Answer: The March 2015 Retailer and Product Survey has been uploaded to the Library 
of Procurement Information and Standard Forms (“the Library”) located on the Lottery’s 
Internet site at the following URL: https://www.flalottery.com/solicitations.do.    

59. Question: Is the scope of advertising just for the state of Florida only, or are neighboring 
cities/towns across the line in bordering states also in scope? 

Answer: All advertising dollars are spent in the state of Florida.     

60. Question: How will you measure success for this digital marketing program? 

Answer: Refer to Attachment A, section 1.7: Agreement Deliverables 

61. Question: What existing partnerships, both digital and other, are we able leverage with 
our digital marketing activities? 

Answer: This information pertains to criteria that will be evaluated; therefore the Lottery 
will not provide guidance to Vendors in preparing their Replies.  However, Vendors 
should refer to section 4.2: Reply Format for guidance in preparing the content of their 
Replies.   

62. Question: Please list urls of owned websites, microsites and social properties considered 
in-scope for this RFP. 

Answer: For this Invitation to Negotiate (ITN), the Contractor provides assets such 
as banners, animation, and videos to the Lottery for posting to the www.flalottery.com 
website.  Access to post is restricted to the Lottery’s in-house team.  As it relates to social 
media URLS or Apps, the Contractor will provide suggestions for content and campaign, 
however, only the Lottery’s in-house team will access and/or post on behalf of the Lottery’s 
account.  The Lottery second chance site is a sub-domain (or microsite) and the Contractor 
may provide suggestions for content.     

63. Question: Are there any objections, misconceptions, or unfavorable perceptions about 
the lottery that must be overcome for purchase? 

Answer: Refer to the answers to questions 21, 22, 23, 40, and 58.   

64. Question: What is the breakdown/distribution of players who play once a month, once 
a week, daily (or whatever breakdown is applicable?) 

Answer: Refer to the answers to questions 21, 22, 23, 40, and 58.   

65. Question: Please describe your in-house resources with whom we’d be partnering: 
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Answer: Communications, Legal, Product Development, Research, Operations including 
New Media Channels team, and Brand Management including Marketing, Special 
Events, Graphics, and Strategic Alliance. 

a. Question: Web dev, marketing, digital, etc. 

Answer: Refer to the answer to question 65 above.  

66. Question: Who (what team within FDOL) has ultimate authority for social media content? 

Answer: The Florida Lottery Secretary, Contract Manager, Communications, and other 
applicable members of the Lottery leadership team. 

67. Question: Do you use social channels as acquisition mechanisms? 

Answer: Yes.  

68. Question: What is the typical lifetime value of a player? 

Answer: This question is too broad or provides insufficient information for the Lottery to 
provide an accurate and complete response.   

69. Question: Is there an ideal age for someone to start playing the lottery in terms of brand 
loyalty and lifetime value? 

Answer: No, however Florida law requires players to be 18 years and above to play 
the Lottery. 

70. Question: Are channels managed and tracked individually or are you looking at the 
combined effect? 

Answer: Refer to the answers to questions 21, 22, 23, 40, and 58.   

71. Question: When you receive marketing reports, do you use Excel? Do people in the 
organization use Excel to compile multiple reports from different sources? Is there manual 
manipulation of data to build and sort reports? Pivot tables in excel, merge of sources, 
etc.? 

Answer: Report data may be exported into Excel from various sources; however, data is 
not necessarily tracked or maintained in Excel. 

72. Question: What percentage of website visitors are mobile vs. desktop 

Answer: Refer to the answers to questions 21, 22, 23, 40, and 58.   

73. Question: What CMS and Analytics platforms does FDOL use?  

Answer: The Lottery currently has access software provided by its current General 
Market Advertising Contractor.   

74. Question: Have activities been conducted for persona and journey mapping?  
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Answer: Yes, persona has been conducted through Lottery Contractors.  No, journey 
mapping has not been conducted. 

75. Question: What are the current priority channels on social media?  

Answer: Facebook and Twitter, followed by Instagram and Youtube. 

76. Question: What is the current objective of each social channel?  

Answer: Facebook - reach and engagement with audience.  Twitter - real time postings 
of Lottery happenings, contests, engagement with followers, and connecting with the 
media.  Instagram - promoting products and promotions, and contest.  Youtube – sharing 
lottery commercials, media events, and promoting the lottery’s role in education and other 
special events.   

77. Question: What is the timeline for legal/compliance review for social content? 

Answer: The Lottery Office of General Counsel reviewed and approved social media 
policies and procedures, and reviews all social media contests rules.  Social media posts 
are made daily by the Lottery Office of Communications.   

78. Question: What social listening tools do you use or have you used in the past? 

Answer: Facebook events, however, the Lottery does not currently stream content.  

79. Question: What metrics are you currently measuring for social media? 

Answer: Social media metrics currently measured include but are not limited to 
impressions, likes, followers, reach, views, and the demographics of fans.   

80. Question: What research can you share with us (sales/consumption data, market data, 
forecasts, trends, etc.)? 

Answer: Refer to the answers to questions 21, 22, 23, 40, and 58.   

81. Question: Is there Availability of and access to historical performance data of marketing 
programs 

Answer: Refer to the answers to questions 21, 22, 23, 40 and 58.   

a. Question: Traditional/Digital marketing programs – is there historical performance 
reporting that we can review for any past campaigns or ongoing programs? 

Answer: Yes.  

82. Question: Do you have an anticipated “media mix” for the coming year? 

Answer: Pursuant to Rule 53-1.005(2)(j), Florida Administrative Code information 
including but not limited to marketing plans and all advertising and components of 
advertising strategy prior to its publication is confidential, therefore anticipated “media 
mix” is not being provided.  
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83. Question: Do you have specific media budgets per channel or a lump sum for the whole 
digital program? 

Answer: The Lottery does not have a specific digital budget.  Digital is added based 
upon each individual campaign.   

84. Question: With respect to reporting, what stakeholders will be sent reporting? 

Answer: This question is too broad or provides insufficient information for the Lottery to 
provide an accurate and complete response.   

85. Question: What ad server do you currently use? Data Management Platform? 

Answer: This is provided by the Lottery’s current General Market Advertising Contractor. 

86. Question: How to do gather and use customer feedback?  

Answer: Lottery Office of Communications, Customer Service Team tracks calls and 
emails by topic, provides the administrative team with results, and elevates issues on a 
case by case basis to internal departments.  Additionally, the Lottery utilizes focus groups, 
tracking studies, and panel surveys.    

 

 
 


